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From: Scearce, Lynn
To: TBishop2@wm.com
Cc: JChristi@wm.com; thawkins@wm.com; Lurix, Joe; ceron.heather@epa.gov; Kathleen Forney;


dee_morse@nps.gov; Read, David; Linero, Alvaro; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn
Subject: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:04:55 PM
Attachments: 0930104-020-AC_Ext_ltr_No.2 - signed.pdf


Dear Mr. Bishop: 


Attached is the official Notice of Extension for the project referenced below. Click
on the link displayed below to access the permit project documents and reply back
verifying receipt of the document(s) provided in the link


Note:  We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate reply will
preclude subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the document(s).


Owner/Company Name: OKEECHOBEE LANDFILL, INC. 
Facility Name: OKEECHOBEE LANDFILL 
Project Number: 0930104-020-AC 
Permit Status: FINAL 
Permit Activity: CONSTRUCTION 
Facility County: OKEECHOBEE


Click on the following link to access the permit project documents: 
http://ARM-
PERMIT2K.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/0930104.020.AC.F_pdf.zip


If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information, please
contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Permitting and
Compliance.


Lynn Scearce


Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management – DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone:  850-717-9025


Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year?  To learn more, please
visit us online at the following web address:  www.title5feeholiday.com


 


 


Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
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Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection 



Bob Martinez Center 
2600 Blair Stone Road 



Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 



Rick Scott 
Governor 



 
Jennifer Carroll 



Lt. Governor 
 



Herschel T. Vinyard Jr. 
Secretary 



October 18, 2012 



Electronically Sent – Received Receipt Requested. 



TBishop2@wm.com 
Mr. Tony Bishop 
District Manager 
Okeechobee Landfill, Inc. 
10800 NE 128th Avenue 
Okeechobee, Florida 34972 



Re:  DEP File No. 0930104-020-AC 
2nd Extension of time to install and operate gas desulfurization plant 
Okeechobee Landfill  
Landfill Gas to Energy Project 



Dear Mr. Bishop: 



On October 16, 2012, the OL requested a second extension of time to operate the gas desulfurization 
plant (GDP) required by permit No. 0930104-018-AC to remove hydrogen sulfide (H2S) from the 
landfill gas (LFG) generated at the Okeechobee Landfill prior to its combustion in flares and/or 
combustion turbines.  Your request is attached along with an attachment of a spreadsheet with H2S 
concentration data. 



We understand that the GDP is currently functioning during, but is experiencing foaming problems 
related to the biological gas treatment process.  Okeechobee Landfill Inc. (OLI) is working with the 
GDP contractors to resolve this problem.  However, OLI has requested a five month extension of 
time from the current compliance date of October 28, 2012 for GDP to treat the LFG to a level of 200 
parts per million or less of H2S.  Based on the circumstances and information provided, the 
Department approves this request and will grant a six month extension of time until April 30, 2013 to 
provide a sufficient period for the OLI to resolve the GDP foaming problems. 



Determination: 



The permit is hereby modified as shown below in strikeout (strikeout) and underline format. 



Section III – Emissions Units Specific Conditions, Condition 10 is modified as follows: 



CONSTRUCTION 
1. GDP:  The permittee is required to install and operate by October 28, 2012 April 30, 2013 a GDP 



such that all collected LFG shall be treated to a concentration less than or equal to 200 ppmv H2S 
or 210 ppmv of TS prior to combustion whether or not the permittee builds a LFGTE plant.  
[Rules 62-212.400, 62-4.070(3) and 62-4.080(1)(a), (b) and (c), F.A.C.] 



A copy of this letter shall be filed with the referenced permit and shall become part of the permit. 



Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance 
with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210, and 62-212 of 
the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting 
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Mr. Tony Bishop, District Manager 
DEP File No. 0930104-020-AC 
Page 2 
requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Department of 
Environmental Protection’s Office of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting Authority 
responsible for making a determination for this project.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address 
is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority’s 
telephone number is 850/717-9000. 



Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may 
petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The 
petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the 
Department’s Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental 
Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.  
Petitions must be filed within 14 days of receipt of this permit modification.  A petitioner shall mail a 
copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing. The failure of 
any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that 
person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 
120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it.  Any subsequent 
intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding 
officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C. 



A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must 
contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each 
agency’s file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the 
petitioner; the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which 
shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of 
how the petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A 
statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; 
(d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts 
alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the 
agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends 
require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the 
alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the 
petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the 
agency’s proposed action.  A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the 
Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall 
contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C. 



Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of 
a petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken 
by it in this written notice.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final 
decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to 
the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above. 



Mediation: Mediation is not available in this proceeding.  



Effective Date: This permitting decision is final and effective on the date filed with the clerk of the 
Department unless a petition is filed in accordance with the above paragraphs or unless a request for 
extension of time in which to file a petition is filed within the time specified for filing a petition 
pursuant to Rule 62-110.106, F.A.C., and the petition conforms to the content requirements of Rules 
28-106.201 and 28-106.301, F.A.C. Upon timely filing of a petition or a request for extension of 
time, this action will not be effective until further order of the Department. 



  











Mr. Tony Bishop, District Manager 
DEP File No. 0930104-020-AC 
Page 3 
Judicial Review: Any party to this permitting decision (order) has the right to seek judicial review of 
it under Section 120.68, F.S., by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of 
Appellate Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of 
General Counsel, Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-
3000, and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the 
appropriate District Court of Appeal.  The notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed 
with the clerk of the Department. 



Executed in Tallahassee, Florida 
(Electronic Signature) 
 
 
 
 



for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator 
Office of Permitting and Compliance 
Division of Air Resource Management 
 



 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 



The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that either this Written Notice 
of Intent to Issue a Air Construction Permit modification or a link to these documents available 
electronically on a publicly accessible server, was sent by electronic mail with received receipt 
requested before the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons. 



Tony Bishop:  TBishop2@wm.com  
Jim Christiansen:  JChristi@wm.com  
Tim Hawkins, Waste Management of Florida, Inc.:  thawkins@wm.com  
Joe Lurix, DEP SED:  joe.lurix@dep.state.fl.us  
Heather Ceron, EPA Region 4: ceron.heather@epa.gov  
Kathleen Forney, U.S. EPA Region 4:  forney.kathleen@epa.gov   
Dee Morse, National Park Service, Denver CO:  dee_morse@nps.gov   
Lynn Scearce, DEP PC Reading File: lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us   
Barbara Friday, DEP PP Reading File: barbara.Friday@dep.state.fl.us  



 
 



Clerk Stamp 



FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, 
on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), 
Florida Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged. 
(Electronic Signature) 
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Attachment 



Extension Request from Waste Management with Attachment











    
 
 
 



 



OKEECHOBEE LANDFILL 
10800 NE 128th Avenue 
Okeechobee, FL 32974 
 



 
October 11, 2012   
 
Mr. David Read 
Air Permitting Engineer 
Division of Air Resources Management 
Department of Environmental Protection 
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 5000 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 
 
RE:  Okeechobee Landfill, Inc (OLI) PSD Air Construction Permit 0930104-018-AC (PSD-FL-
382A) 
 
Dear David: 
 



This letter is to request a second extension to Specific Condition III.A.1 of the referenced 
permit that requires OLI to install and operate a gas desulphurization plant (GDP) such that all 
collected landfill gas is treated to less than 200 ppmv H2S by June 30, 2012.  The first extension, 
granted by FDEP on June 28, 2012, extended the compliance date to October 28, 2012.     Due to 
continuing operational issues described below, we are requesting the compliance date be 
extended again to March 31, 2013.   



   
Similar to the first request, the plant remains functional and treating landfill gas, but we 



continue to experience foaming which is precluding consistent treatment of landfill gas to the 
200 ppmv H2S level.   The foaming prevents optimum transfer of H2S from the vapor phase to 
the liquid phase in the system contactor and causes a number of other operational issues which 
lead to significant down-time.    A table showing the H2S data and thirty day rolling average 
from June 30, 2012 through September 30, 2012 is attached.   As shown, we were able to meet 
the permit limit of 200 ppmv H2S for an extended period, but concentrations have steadily 
increased since mid August.   



 
It is important to note that even with the ongoing problems, the landfill gas is still being 



treated to levels that are lower than those we proposed in our permit application (400 ppmv H2S).  
Also, due to several factors, gas flow rates at the landfill are significantly lower than estimated in 
the permit application.   This combination of reduced H2S concentrations to the flare and 
decreased gas flows (currently approximately 2700 scfm), means the annual emissions of SO2 
are greatly reduced and considerably lower than the amounts emitted before construction of the 
GDP.    The emissions of SO2 in tons per year are still less than the worst case SO2 emissions 
that passed dispersion modeling conducted in February 2007 for the permit application. The 
landfill gas generation used in the dispersion modeling was based on the full build out of both 
the Berman Road and Clay Farms landfill of 32,400 scfm of gas.  Based on current data for the 
landfill, including much lower waste acceptance rates and the amount of landfill gas being 
generated versus modeled,  it is very likely that the life of site gas curve used for the modeling 
was over-stated.    With respect to SO2 concentrations in the emissions, the modeling that was 
performed for the permit application was conducted assuming a GDP being in place, and since 
SO2 emissions are directly related to H2S content of the landfill gas, we still believe that the 











 



modeled results accurately reflect compliance with the NAAQS in place at the time of the 
permitting.  Again, we believe this is all important for FDEP to consider when evaluating this 
request. 
 



Since the time of the first request, the OLI plant design team has investigated a number of 
issues and considered several potential solutions.  We provided email updates to you on our 
progress on 7/23, 8/15, and 9/17.  In August, it appeared the foaming issue had been sufficiently 
resolved through changes to the input temperature of the process water and incremental changes 
to the conductivity present in the system.  Outlet concentrations of H2S declined significantly.   
However, these improvements proved unsustainable, and foaming began increasing in late 
August and into September.  During this time, we continued to both press the contractor for 
solutions and utilize antifoaming agents to the degree practicable (if used in excess, the 
antifoaming agents can cause problems with the system).  Though the contractor’s design and 
operation engineeers believe the constituents in the landfill gas itself are not problematic and the 
system can be made fully functional, they have yet to provide a definitive solution.  



 
In response to the recent increase in foaming events, the contractor has now suggested the 



system may be magnesium deficient and recommended the addition of magnesium sulfate.   
They also recommended installation of continuous drip feed or dosing antifoam pumps at various 
points in the system, changes to the nutrient feed, and additional adjustments to the conductivity, 
pH, and redox potential.  We are currently pursuing these recommendations and began feeding 
magnesium into the system on October 9, 2012.     They continue to work with the water 
treatment subcontractor to evaluate potential issues and solutions for the input water, though it is 
unclear if this will improve the system.  We estimate it will take several months to, implement, 
and fully evaluate the changes to the system, which must be allowed to reach steady state before 
a true confirmation of efficacy and stable operation can be made.   Achieving steady state when 
changing a biological system can take several weeks.   On the positive side, at this point we are 
more comfortable with the H2S measurements obtained from the CFM and other instruments, so 
we can better assess our emissions and the effect of any changes to the system.  
 



Lastly, while other non-WM landfills have successfully utilized this technology on a 
smaller scale, Okeechobee Landfill is not the only Waste Management landifll site experiencing 
issues with this technology.  Two other WM  landfills, the King George Landfill in Virginia and 
Pine Tree Acres Landfill in Michigan, are experiencing startup issues at new GDPs using the 
same biological H2S removal technology and contractors.  The Pine Tree Acres GDP was 
operational for several months, but was shut down after experiencing very similar foaming issues 
to OLI, despite using treated city water with very different characteristics.  The King George 
Landfill is delayed in startup.  Because of the inability of the contactor to provide timely 
solutions on multiple projects, upper level managmeent from WM is working at a high level with 
the GDP vendor to achieve a comprehensive solution to these issues and will pursue all avenues 
necessary to do so.  However, each system has unique characteristics and requires a specific 
recipe and approach.   
 
 
 
 



 











 



We thank you for your willingness to consider this request.  Please be assured OLI is 
working diligently to both minimize emissions and correct all problems with the GDP.    If you 
have any questions, please contact Jim Christiansen at 321-704-4162. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Tony Bishop 
District Manager 
 
cc:  Lee Hoefert, P.E., SE District Air Program       
 
ATTACHMENT











    
 



 



 
  











 



 
  











 



 








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


			FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.





						2012-10-18T15:09:39-0400


			A.A. Linero








						2012-10-18T15:56:39-0400


			Lynn Scearce


















by clicking on this link DEP Customer Survey.



http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us






From: Microsoft Exchange
To: Lurix, Joe; Read, David; Linero, Alvaro
Subject: Delivered: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:04:58 PM


Your message has been delivered to the following recipients:
HYPERLINK "mailto:Joe.Lurix@dep.state.fl.us"Lurix, Joe
HYPERLINK "mailto:David.Read@dep.state.fl.us"Read, David
HYPERLINK "mailto:Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us"Linero, Alvaro
Subject: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
  _____  
Sent by Microsoft Exchange Server 2007



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MICROSOFTEXCHANGE329E71EC88AE4615BBC36AB6CE41109E
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From: Microsoft Exchange
To: Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Delivered: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:04:57 PM


Your message has been delivered to the following recipients:
HYPERLINK "mailto:Barbara.Friday@dep.state.fl.us"Friday, Barbara
HYPERLINK "mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us"Scearce, Lynn
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
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: FW: 0930104-019-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension of Time
Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 10:37:27 AM
Attachments: Okeechobee Landfill ex_ltr - Signed.pdf


 


 


From: Scearce, Lynn 
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2012 11:36 AM
To: 'TBishop2@wm.com'
Cc: 'JChristi@wm.com'; 'thawkins@wm.com'; 'lennon.anderson@dep.state.fl.us';
'ceron.heather@epa.gov'; 'forney.kathleen@epa.gov'; 'dee_morse@nps.gov'; Read, David; 'Justin
Green'; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn
Subject: 0930104-019-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension of Time


 


Dear Mr. Bishop: 


Attached is the official Notice of Extension of Time for the project referenced below. Click
on the link displayed below to access the permit project documents and send a "reply"
message verifying receipt of the document(s) provided in the link; this may be done by
selecting "Reply" on the menu bar of your e-mail software, noting that you can view the
documents, and then selecting "Send".  


**Please notice your permit is electronically signed and is also PDF searchable.


Note:  We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate
reply will preclude subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the
document(s).


Owner/Company Name: OKEECHOBEE LANDFILL, INC. 
Facility Name: OKEECHOBEE LANDFILL 
Project Number: 0930104-019-AC 
Permit Status: FINAL 
Permit Activity: CONSTRUCTION 
Facility County: OKEECHOBEE


Click on the following link to access the permit project documents: 
http://ARM-
PERMIT2K.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/0930104.019.AC.F_pdf.zip


Permit project documents addressed in this email may require immediate action within a
specified time frame. Please open and review the document(s) as soon as possible, and verify
that they are accessible. Please advise this office of any changes to your e-mail address or
that of the Engineer-of-Record. If you have any problems opening the documents or would
like further information, please contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection,
Office of Permitting and Compliance.
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



June 28, 2012 



Electronically Sent – Received Receipt Requested. 



TBishop2@wm.com 
Mr. Tony Bishop, District Manager 
Okeechobee Landfill, Inc. 
10800 NE 128th Avenue 
Okeechobee, FL 34972 



Re:  Project No. 0930104-019-AC 
Revision to Permit No. 0930104-018-AC 
Extension of Time to Install and Operate the Gas Desulfurization Plant 
Okeechobee Landfill, Landfill Gas-to-Energy Project 



Dear Mr. Bishop: 



On June 25, 2012, the Okeechobee Landfill requested additional time (request attached) to complete 
installation and commence full operation of the gas desulfurization plant (GDP) required by Permit No. 
0930104-018-AC.  This system is designed to remove hydrogen sulfide from the landfill gas prior to 
combustion in flares and/or combustion turbines.  The GDP is currently functioning during its shakedown 
period, but is experiencing foaming problems.  The Okeechobee Landfill is working with the GDP 
contractors to resolve this problem.  However, additional shakedown time is needed to treat the LFG to a 
level of 200 parts per million or less of hydrogen sulfide.  Based on the circumstances and information 
provided, the Department approves this request and will grant a 120 day extension of time to provide a 
sufficient period for the Okeechobee Landfill to overcome the initial startup issues. 



Determination: 



Permit No. 0930104-018-AC is hereby modified as shown below in strikeout (strikeout) and underline 
format. 



Section III – Emissions Units Specific Conditions, Condition 1 is modified as follows: 



1. GDP:  The permittee is required to install and operate by June 30 October 28, 2012 a GDP such that 
all collected LFG shall be treated to a concentration less than or equal to 200 ppmv H2S or 210 ppmv 
of TS prior to combustion whether or not the permittee builds a LFGTE plant.  [Rules 62-212.400, 
62-4.070(3) and 62-4.080(1)(a), (b) and (c), F.A.C.] 



A copy of this letter shall be filed with the referenced permit and shall become part of the permit. 



Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with 
the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210, and 62-212 of the 
Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting 
requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Department of 
Environmental Protection’s Office of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting Authority responsible 
for making a determination for this project.  The Permitting Authority’s physical address is: 111 South 
Magnolia Drive, Suite #4, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is: 
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority’s 
telephone number is 850/717-9000. 
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Mr. Tony Bishop, District Manager 
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Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may 
petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition 
must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s 
Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 
Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.  Petitions must be filed 
within 14 days of receipt of this permit modification.  A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the 
applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition 
within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an 
administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this 
proceeding and participate as a party to it.  Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by 
another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in 
compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C. 



A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must 
contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s 
file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner; 
the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the 
address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the 
petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when 
and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all 
disputed issues of material fact; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the 
specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) 
A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the 
agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or 
statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the 
petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s proposed action.  A petition that does not 
dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such 
facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by 
Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C. 



Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a 
petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it 
in this written notice.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of 
the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, 
in accordance with the requirements set forth above. 



Mediation: Mediation is not available in this proceeding.  



Effective Date: This permitting decision is final and effective on the date filed with the clerk of the 
Department unless a petition is filed in accordance with the above paragraphs or unless a request for 
extension of time in which to file a petition is filed within the time specified for filing a petition pursuant 
to Rule 62-110.106, F.A.C., and the petition conforms to the content requirements of Rules 28-106.201 
and 28-106.301, F.A.C. Upon timely filing of a petition or a request for extension of time, this action will 
not be effective until further order of the Department. 



Judicial Review: Any party to this permitting decision (order) has the right to seek judicial review of it 
under Section 120.68, F.S., by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate 
Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of General Counsel, 
Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000, and by filing a 
copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court 
of Appeal.  The notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed with the clerk of the 
Department. 



 
 











Mr. Tony Bishop, District Manager 
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Executed in Tallahassee, Florida 
(Electronic Signature) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 



The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that either this Written Notice of 
Intent to Issue a Air Construction Permit modification or a link to these documents available 
electronically on a publicly accessible server, was sent by electronic mail with received receipt requested 
before the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons. 



Tony Bishop, OL:  TBishop2@wm.com  
Jim Christiansen, OL:  JChristi@wm.com  
Tim Hawkins, Waste Management of Florida, Inc.:  thawkins@wm.com  
Lennon Anderson, DEP: Lennon.anderson@dep.state.fl.us  
Heather Ceron, EPA Region 4: ceron.heather@epa.gov  
Kathleen Forney, U.S. EPA Region 4:  forney.kathleen@epa.gov   
Dee Morse, National Park Service:  dee_morse@nps.gov   
Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC Reading File: lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us   
Barbara Friday, DEP OPC Reading File: barbara.Friday@dep.state.fl.us  



Clerk Stamp 



FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, 
on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida 
Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged. 
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





						2012-06-28T11:15:43-0400


			Jeffery F. Koerner








						2012-06-28T11:21:52-0400


			Lynn Scearce


















Lynn Scearce


Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management – DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone:  850-717-9025


 








From: Bishop, Tony
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: RE: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Monday, October 22, 2012 10:19:20 AM


Received and was able to access


Thanks!


 


From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Monday, October 22, 2012 9:15 AM
To: Bishop, Tony
Cc: Christiansen, Jim; Hawkins, Tim
Subject: RE: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension


 


No not yet.  But if you can view everything then I will take you off the list.  Thanks.


 


From: Bishop, Tony [mailto:TBishop2@wm.com] 
Sent: Monday, October 22, 2012 9:02 AM
To: Scearce, Lynn
Cc: Christiansen, Jim; Hawkins, Tim; Lurix, Joe; ceron.heather@epa.gov; Kathleen Forney;
dee_morse@nps.gov; Read, David; Linero, Alvaro; Friday, Barbara
Subject: RE: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension


 


Did anybody send a verification on receipt


 


From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:05 PM
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


Waste Management recycles enough paper every year to save 41 million trees.
Please recycle any printed emails.



http://arm-permit2k.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/0930104.020.AC.F_pdf.zip

http://arm-permit2k.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/0930104.020.AC.F_pdf.zip

http://www.title5feeholiday.com/

http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/tv_fee_holiday.htm

http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us






From: Bishop, Tony
To: Scearce, Lynn
Cc: Christiansen, Jim; Hawkins, Tim; Lurix, Joe; ceron.heather@epa.gov; Kathleen Forney; dee_morse@nps.gov;


Read, David; Linero, Alvaro; Friday, Barbara
Subject: RE: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Monday, October 22, 2012 9:06:45 AM


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






From: Hawkins, Tim
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:07:38 PM


Your message was read on Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:07:31 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:THawkins@wm.com
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From: Bishop, Tony
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:19:16 PM


Your message was read on Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:19:09 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
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From: Linero, Alvaro
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:32:53 PM


Your message was read on Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:32:19 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=LINERO_A

mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=Lynn.Scearce






From: Friday, Barbara
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Friday, October 19, 2012 7:26:10 AM


Your message was read on Friday, October 19, 2012 7:26:09 AM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
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From: Lurix, Joe
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Friday, October 19, 2012 9:31:01 AM


Your message was read on Friday, October 19, 2012 9:31:00 AM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=LURIX_J
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From: Scearce, Lynn
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:05:46 PM


Your message was read on Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:05:31 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=LYNN.SCEARCE
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From: Microsoft Exchange
To: dee_morse@nps.gov
Subject: Relayed: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2012 4:04:58 PM


Delivery to these recipients or distribution lists is complete, but delivery notification was not sent by the destination:
HYPERLINK "mailto:dee_morse@nps.gov"dee_morse@nps.gov
Subject: 0930104-020-AC, Okeechobee Landfill, Inc., Okeechobee Landfill, Extension
  _____  
Sent by Microsoft Exchange Server 2007
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